C.® Larth Negotiations Bulletin

‘?’* J A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Vol. 9 No. 90 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development Friday, 8 May 1998
CBD COP-4 HIGHLIGHTS and training. Many delegates called for cooperation with relevant
THURSDAY 7 MAY, 1998 international organizations, in particular RAMSAR, to avoid duplica-

tion of effort.

On the fourth day of the Fourth Meeting of the Conference of the |CELAND and NORWAY, supported by AUSTRALIA, said that
Parties (COP-4) of theddivention on Biological Diversity (CBD),  while they agreed with the proposed work programme, they were
delegates metin Working Group | and Il throughout the day. Workingncerned with implementation issues. AUSTRALIA and the US sa
Group | discussed marine and coastal biodiversity and began delibgf@work programme constitutes a first step to marshall and coordin
tion on agricultural biodiversity. Working Group Il continued its  expertise at the global level and, with the support of ICELAND and
discussion on national reports, considered the results of the speciaghORWAY, the UK, on behalf of the EU, and FINLAND, for informa-
session of the United Nations General Assembly (UNGASS), tion required for implementation of activities at the local, national an
discussedh situconservation and began discussion on the relationsfdgional levels.
between the CBD and other international agreements. A brief after- ~\ce AND suggested amendments includiiger alia: regarding
noon plenary session reported on recommendations from the Buregfd jmplementation of integrated marine and coastal area managem
and procedural matters. deletion of the word “marine” since the term “coastal area” includes
PLENARY adjacent marine areas; and regarding marine and coastal protected
areas, that either the objective should state clearly the necessity of
promoting work on guidelines or the activities should be more ambi-
tious. FIJI, SPAIN and the US preferred to retain the concept of “int
grated marine and coastal area management” as it reflects best
practices and the Jakarta Mandate.

TANZANIA, on behalf of the African Group, and supported by the

EYCHELLES, KENYA, ETHIOPIA, COMORES and SOUTH

The Bureau was presented and the following positions were
announced: Asia representative Mohammad Reza Salamat (Iran);
rapporteur Feliciana Ortiga Sampaio (Brazil); and the Chair dithe
HocWorking Group on Biosafety, Veit Koester.

The Bureau proposed contact groupsioter alia: SBSTTA,
chaired by Professor Zakri A. Hamid (MALAYSIA); CHM, chaired b

BRAZIL and the EU, biosafety, co-chaired by John Ashe (ANTIGU FRICA, drew attention to the increased temperatures of the Indian

and BARBUDA) and Katrin Kummer (SWITZERLAND). Ocean and the resultant coral bleaching thhoug the region, and the
WORKING GROUP | threat the potential broad biodiversity loss poses to local and indige

On Thursday morning and afternoon, Working Group | (WG-) Nous coastal communities. He requested that the CBD Annex | (ide
reconvened with a report by the FAO on its ongoing collaborative fication and monitoring) incorporate assessment of coral reef dama
efforts with the CBD, in particular, aspects of the joint work He appealed to the COP to call upon the cooperation of the UNFCC

programme related to inland water ecosystems. The FAO noted th&tERU requested the same with respect to El Nifio. _

the Framework for GEF activities does not provide suppoeesitu The SEYCHELLES, on behalf of Small Island Developing States
conservation and the need for more attention on animal and aquaticS!DS), and supported by FIJI, NEW ZEALAND, JAMAICA, the
genetic resources and farming systems, and offered assistance to BAHAMAS, COMORES, HAITI, GAMBIA, and ETHIOPIA, onbe-

Parties to implement their national policies and action plans. half of the African Group, noting the exclusion of SIDS’ concerns

On inland waters, Chair Marcel Vernooy (the Netherlands), estd2M the work programme, stressed that SIDS are responsible for a

lished a contact group, chaired by Greg Thompson (Canada), to draf@ificant proportion of global biodiversity. o _
consolidated text incorporating the amendments from WG-I's discus- SWEDEN stressed coordination with regional scientific organiza
sions on Wednesday. tions and making information on genetic resources, including those
WG-I began considering implementation of the programme of being prospected by pharmaceutical companies, available to all
work on marine and coastal biodiversiyNEP/CBD/COP/4/5). WG- Parties. FIJl and the INDIGENOUS KNOWLEDGE PROGRAM
| reaffirmed the Jakarta Mandate and supported the three-year worfj0ted that the work programme does not incorporate Article 8(j), as
programme strengthening the development and application of the irected by decision 11/10, and gsked the COP to support an amend
ecosystem and precautionary approaches, as well as integrated cd8§f The FOREST PEOPLES' PROGRAMME noted the recently
area management. Many delegates supported: identification of indfgaclished Industrial Shrimp Action Network and highlighted issue:
tors; a roster of experts; rigorous control over the introduction of aﬁﬂncernm_g sustainable mariculture. A contact group, to be chaired |
species; and strengthening capacity building and increased researefn Nevil (Seychelles), was established.

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulletin @enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Richard Campbell <richcam@hotmail.com>, Debbie Davenport <ddavenp@.emory.e
Laura Ivers <laurai@iisd.org>, Leila Mead {é&&®interport.net>and Tiffany Prather <tprather@iisd.org>.The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the|Man.
Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Mibsbsidpment Cooperation, the Governmgnt

of Canada (through CIDA) and the United States (through USAID). General Support for the Bulletin during 1998 is provideditedtkengdom Department for International
Development (DFID), the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU), the Swiss Office for Environment, Forests and LathdsEapspean Community (DG-XI), the
Government of Norway, UNDP and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. Funding for the French version has been pra@@adiByF, with support from the French
Ministry of Cooperation and the Québec Ministry of the Environment and Wildlife. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mai@disderrg> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax:
+1-212-644-0206. 1ISD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, WinnipegR8RITivh Canada. The opinions expressed
in theEarth Negotiation8ulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 1ISD and other funders. ExcerptEémmiNegotiations Bulletimay be
used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this materiataiatublications, contact the Managing Editor.
Electronic versions of thBulletinare sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. fhiesagelivas taken
above New York City (c)1998 The Livirgarth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on Beath Negotiations Bulletirsend e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Friday, 8 May 1998 4 Reporting Service for and Vol. 9 No. 90 Page 2

WG-I considered the Programme of Work on Agricultural Biologsupported development of a programme of work relating to tourism.
ical Diversity (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/6, UNEP/CBD/COP/4/Inf. 20, an@ihe PACIFIC ISLANDS asked for clarification on the CBD’s role in
UNEP/CBD/COP/4/Inf.24). Most delegates expressed support for thestainable tourism and noted that a clearer mandate is necessary.
SBSTTA recommendation 11l/4. ETHIOPIA, on behalf of the African  The WORLD TOURISM ORGANIZATION highlighted its:
Group, and supported by TANZANIA, KENYA and ZAMBIA, high- manual on sustainable tourism; conferences on tourism in SIDS; an
lighted the importance of agricultural biodiversity for food security. seminars on Agenda 21 and tourism.

TANZANIA said agricultural biodiversity could be the defining theme paALAWI, the PACIFIC ISLANDS, IRAN, AUSTRALIA,

in this Convention. o _ INDIA, INDONESIA, CANADA and TOGO sipported strengthening
INDIA and other delegations, including MOROCCO, TANZANIAcooperation and collaboration between the CBD and other agreeme
and ETHIOPIA, urged the COP to adopt the International Undertakinstitutions and processes to secure collective and coordinated acti
on Plant Genetic Resources as a protocol to the CBD. The UK, on The EU, COLOMBIA and INDIA supported cooperation with the
behalf of the EU, said cooperation between the CBD and the FAO WTO to address benefit sharing and IPR. The IVORY COAST recor
should be expanded to include other international bodies active in #isnded developing a methodology for expedient implementation of
field. MOROCCO stressed the need to strike a balance between  cooperation amng conventions. KENYA encouragptbmotion of
acceptable production levels and conservation of biodiversity, espgynergy at the national lev@0LIVIA stressed the need for synergy
cially for developing countries. with the UNFCCC due to its influence on bioeisity. The NATURE
The PHILIPPINES noted with deep concern the emergence of CONSERVANCY recommended that the COP outline the linkages
technologies that sterilize agricultural varieties, depriving farmers thetween the UNFCCC and the CBD and ensure that the Kyoto
ability to reuse their seeds and called iinter alia; a global assess-  Protocol is consistent with and in support of the CBD.
ment of agricultural biodiversity; prior informed consent for access;  Onin situconservation, CHAD emphasized the detrimental impa
and capacity building for local and indigenous communities, of countries without protected areas and the long term challenge thi
including,inter alia, the design of viable incentives. presents for Parties. SOUTH AFRICA noted tinaituconservation
TANZANIA and INDIA stressed that the IPR regime and the  is most important for the long-term. ECUADOR and TRINIDAD
Trade-Related Aspects of Intellectual Property Rights (TRIPS) agréddND TOBAGO said protected areas should be given greater attenti
ment of the World Trade Organization (WTO) are detrimental to then the long term and at COP meetings. SWITZERLAND, the CZECF
objectives of the CBD. INDONESIA urgeithter alia, the Consulta- REPUBLIC, speaking for the CEE, and MONACO stressed the mer
tive Group of the International Agricultural Research (CGIAR) to givé the Pan-European strategy as an example of regional cooperatio

more attention to enhancing underutilized species. CANADA encouraged the COP to strengthen cooperation with the
World Intellectual Property Association. TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO
WORKING GROUP i and SLOVENIA supported the IUCN’s proposal to heighten support

_ Inthe morning session, Working Group Il (WG-II) resumed its  for protected areas. KENYA called to consider protected areas unde
discussion on national reports. WG-II then turned to consideration gfe next programme of work of the CBD.
the outcome of UNGASS, and delegates discussed trade and environThe Convention on Migratory Species and the World Heritage
ment, sustainable tourism, future work of the CSD and the role of th&syyention highlighted areas of synergy with the CBD. The Bern
Convention (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/12). In the afternoon session, WGdlhnvention (Europe Region) and the Barcelona Convention (Medite
addressed cooperation with other agreements, institutionsand  gnean Region) welcomed memorandums of cooperation with the

processes relevantitsituconservation (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/13), ascBD. The [UCN, noting that Article 8r( situconservation) is critical
well as the relationship between the CBD and TRIPS (UNEP/CBD/gtressed coIIabdration%vith the CBD.r( ) ’

Cop/4/|nfj29)' ) o On trade, MALI opposed emphasizing a complementary relation
On national reports, BURUNDI, noting that guidelines are not - ship petween trade and environment, notinggr alia, the adverse

enough, said that Parties’ capacity to produce reports must be .bi!mpact of development on biological diversity. UGANDA supported
2%%9;3]3%@;?5&% gltirneessse?;ﬂ%k%ﬁzrhi%cgrl?;gc?\t/r?elsoiﬁlwr;)%:tlg)r?ceﬁe prior informed consent policy for access to genetic resources.

: : ETHIOPIA introduced its submission (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/Inf.29
of adequate and timely provision of resources to produce the reports, - hficts between the CBD and TRIPS(. ETHIOPIA, supported b)}
RUSSIA supported regional synthesis and requested harmonlzathg@%NDA, proposed an open-endad hooworking group to address
report content and format. The CZECH REPUBLIC, on behalf of th, o jsq11e INDIA underlined the importance of the issue and propos

CEE, supported harmonization of reports with other biodiversity- intersessional activities to address the issue. SWITZERLAND said t
related conventions. ZAMBIA called for biodiversity planning SUPPOl;tter should be addressed by existing mechanisms. The EU said ti
and, with IRAN, opposed reports focusing on specific articles. is no hierarchy between the WTO and MEAS, and no conflict betwec

The INDIAN INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION TRIPS and the CBD. The EU preferred that these issues be addres:
stressed the need to involve civil society in preparation of national i the WTO Committee on Trade and Environment. An NGO coalitio
reports, proposed that reports include updates on Article 6, and  rged the COP to affirm that the CBD takes precedence over the W1

suggested that reports be made publicly available. _ ensure that WTO decisions are not harmful to biodiversity and imple
The MARSHALL ISLANDS, for Pacific Island Countries, noted ment Article (8);.

that the Secretariat report overlooked issues important to SIDS.
CHILE said that data, ideas and concepts alone will not implement il HE CORRIDORS
Convention, and called for real action. The EU, AUSTRALIA, Some delegates speculated that certain countries may try to
GERMANY and INDONESIA supported the integration of biodiver-obstruct the adoption of a work programme on forests. Otherwise, tl
sity consideration into all sectors of human activities. corridors were suspiciously quiet.

Regarding sustainable tourism, GERMANY proposed developin
guidelines, based on a workshop on biological dri)veEsity and sustginf‘]J THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
able tourism held in Heidelberg in MartB98(UNEP/CBD/COP/4/ WG-I: WG-I will reconvene at 10:00 am in Hall C to continue
Inf.21). The EU favored elaboration of guidelines on biodiversity amdiscussion of agricultural biodiversity.
sustainable tourism in cooperation with UNEP and the World Tourism \WG-II: WG-II will reconvene at 10:00 am to proceed with discus
Organization, and called for @l hocworking group to prepare the  sion on the relationship between the WTO and the CBD and begin t
guidelines. AUSTRALIA and SOUTH AFRICA suggested a small, review of the operations of the Convention.
regionally balanced group develop the guidelines. ZIMBABWE



